
ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW TEAM 

 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

 
JANUARY 14, 2014 

 
 
 
 
ART Members:  Steve Langworthy, Planning Director; Alan Perkins, Fire Marshal; Fred Hahn, 
Director of Parks and Open Space; Colleen Gilger, Economic Development Administrator; Ray 
Harpham, Commercial Plans Examiner; Barb Cox, Engineering Manager; Jeff Tyler, Building 
Standards Director; Laura Ball, Landscape Architect; Lieutenant Steve Farmer, Police; and Paul 
Hammersmith, Engineering Director. 
  
Other Staff:  Dan Phillabaum, Senior Planner; Rachel Ray, Planner II; Claudia Husak, Planner 
II; Kristin Yorko, Civil Engineer, and Laurie Wright, Staff Assistant.  
 
Applicants:  Paul Ghidotti and Chris Tumblin, Daimler Group; Thomas Raabe and Mike 
Fitzpatrick, Ohio University; Greg Chillog, Edge Group; and Jessica Chouteau, EMH&T.   
 
Steve Langworthy called the meeting to order at 2:05 pm.   
 
DETERMINATION 

1. 13-119WID-DP – ID-1 – Ohio University College of Health Sciences and 
Professions – Post Road & Industrial Parkway 
 

Dan Phillabaum said this is a proposal for an approximately 87,000-square-foot, three-story 
educational building, parking lot, and associated site improvements as part of the Ohio 
University Dublin Campus.  He said the site is located on the south side of Post Road, west of 
Eiterman Road.  He explained this Development Plan Review application is proposed in 
accordance with Zoning Code Section 153.042(D). 
 
Steve Langworthy asked if everyone received a copy of the preliminary Planning Report sent by 
Mr. Phillabaum that afternoon and whether they had an opportunity to review. 
 
Mr. Phillabaum explained that the report was organized according to the order of the Code 
requirements for the West Innovation District.  He began by focusing on the conditions that 
were identified for the ART to consider, of which there are six. 
 

1. Parcels in Subarea One need to be combined to eliminate building side yard setback 
issues.  [No comments were made.] 
 

2. Parking lot design needs to be revised to distribute landscape islands through the lot 
and submitted prior to this Friday, January 17 when the packets go to PZC.  He asked if 
anyone had a concern with the time frame.  Paul Ghidotti responded for his group by 
saying no.   

  

 

 
Land Use and Long 
Range Planning 
 
5800 Shier Rings Road 
Dublin, Ohio 43016-1236 

 
phone 614.410.4600 
fax  614.410.4747 
 
www.dublinohiousa.gov 
____________________ 

 



Administrative Review Team Special Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, January 14, 2014 

Page 2 of 5 
 
 
Mr. Ghidotti provided an Ohio University Satellite Parking Summary, which showed the 
comparison between the Dublin Campus and eight other comparable OU campuses.  He 
explained that the document summarized the square footage total for all buildings on each 
campus, the parking count, and the parking ratio.  He said it also reflected the existing numbers 
for the Dublin campus (482 spaces) along with the proposal for the new building (400 spaces).  
He said this analysis will be used in part to explain the needs of the Dublin campus being 
proposed (4.45 parking spaces per 1,000 square feet) that exceed the Code.  Mr. Ghidotti said 
they plan to break up the 52 spaces included in the parking lot along Industrial Parkway with 
landscape islands, as recommended by ART.  He shared the revised plan, which shows a loss of 
7 spaces, but believes it is a better plan.   
 
Mr. Phillabaum asked about the minimum 10-foot island they discussed last week, which they 
said they would incorporate.  He said the ART had recommended the island be created between 
the first and second bays of the parking from Industrial Parkway, consistent with the sketch 
discussed at the January 9, 2014, ART meeting.  He said the ART had also suggested mounding 
with landscaping to screen the parking lot from the right-of-way.   
 
Mr. Ghidotti said he wanted to show this new configuration to the PZC.  He thought that the 10-
foot change could be made elsewhere.  Mr. Phillabaum said the City is standing by the 
suggestion to include that additional green space within the parking lot to support locating the 
parking lot prominently along the right-of-way.  He reiterated that the Code requires that 
parking areas be limited along street frontages. 
 
Fred Hahn agreed that they need to break up the mass of asphalt.  The views should be 
interrupted and the median strip helps to achieve that objective. 
 
Mr. Ghidotti asked if there were other locations in Dublin that break up the parking lot as 
suggested.  He inquired how well grass grows when planted in the islands without drainage.  
Mr. Hahn agreed that at times there is a lot of heat coming off of the asphalt and that 
ultimately it may need to be mulch versus turf. 
 
Mr. Ghidotti noted the diamond-shaped parking lot islands at the Lennox Town Center, which 
contain a single tree and asked if that would be an option.  Laura Ball said it was not good for 
the trees.   
 
Mr. Langworthy said he agreed with Mr. Hahn; the large parking lot has great length.  He asked 
if they plan to terminate the view at the end of the parking lot drive aisle by incorporating a 
vertical element.  He said if the parking lot elevation was higher than the road, like what was 
created at Cardinal Health, it would add to the elevation difference. 
 
Mr. Ghidotti answered if they do that they would need to make corresponding changes.  He said 
if the ART was going to require the additional 10-foot parking island, that they would include it. 
 

3. Bike path connection needs to be provided from the bicycle parking spaces on the east 
side of the building to the existing multi-use path along Post Road. 

 
Mr. Phillabaum said there were 16 bike spaces provided between the east side of the building 
and the dumpster, which needed to be connected to the bike network.  Mr. Ghidotti said he did 
not want bikes on the sidewalk that wrap the east side of the building.  Many options were 



Administrative Review Team Special Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, January 14, 2014 

Page 3 of 5 
 
 
discussed amongst the group.  It was decided that an 8-foot wide multi-use path would create 
the shortest connection for a direct route between the building exits, the bicycle parking spaces, 
and the drive aisle off of Post Road.  This also resolved the Building Code issue with providing 
remote egress points from the building. 
 
Ms. Cox recommended that an explanation of how the connections meet public access will need 
to be written into the master plan. 
 

4. Tree Preservation and Landscape Plans need to be revised. 
 
Mr. Phillabaum referred to the Tree Preservation Plan as noted in the Planning Report, which 
did not meet the Code requirement.  He said approximately 545 caliper inches of trees are 
proposed to be removed, and a total of 114 2.5-inch caliper trees are designated as 
replacement trees, leaving a shortfall of 104 2.5-inch caliper trees for which the applicant is 
proposing to pay fees in lieu of replacement.  He said there appears to be several opportunities 
to locate trees on the site to reduce this number. 
 
Greg Chillog, Edge Group, agreed there were opportunities and asked where those areas might 
be.  Mr. Phillabaum answered what remains of the wedge could be an opportunity.  Mr. 
Langworthy recommended the applicant coordinate on the location of the replacement trees 
with Planning.  
 
Mr. Phillabaum again referenced the note in the Planning Report, which states the Tree Survey 
indicated the removal of several existing Norway Spruces planted as a hedgerow between the 
Post Road access drive and the proposed stormwater basin.  He explained that these trees are 
part of the original site design, extending south from Post Road through the campus as a 
significant design element that directs views into the campus.  He said the plan should be 
revised to preserve this tree row to the maximum extent practical. 
 
Mr. Tyler, noted that condition #4 prior was stated as ‘prior to building permitting’.  He said this 
should be changed to ‘prior to issuance of site permits’ by City of Dublin, as the State of Ohio 
would be issuing the building permit.  Mr. Phillabaum wrote the clarification and would change 
same language on #5. 
 

5. Lighting Plan meeting all applicable Code requirements needs to be submitted with the 
building permit. 

 
Mr. Phillabaum noted that based on the revised parking lot layout, the lighting plan needed to 
demonstrate conformance with the Code requirements. 
 

6. Adequate site circulation and fire access to all buildings needs to be ensured. 
 

Mr. Phillabaum asked Alan Perkins if he had received the AutoTurn analysis and he responded, 
yes.  Mr. Perkins referred to a potential right turn overlap in the landscape island at the left side 
of the drive aisle.  He asked if there could be an adjustment made in the turn radius to match 
the other side, softening it up without impacting the landscaping.  Mr. Phillabaum suggested 
changing it from a 5-foot radius to a 10-foot radius.   



Administrative Review Team Special Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, January 14, 2014 

Page 4 of 5 
 
 
Mr. Perkins repeated what he said in the meeting held on January 9, which was that in the 
future, the fire apparatus access in the dumpster location next to the proposed building would 
need fire lane signage and potentially pavement markings to prohibit unauthorized parking.  He 
also believed parking in the area behind the 7003 building could also be an issue for emergency 
vehicle maneuvering.  

Jessica Chouteau, EMH&T, showed where the vehicle turn-around in that portion of the site 
would occur, and said they would designate where parking was permitted. 
 
Mr. Ghidotti confirmed they were ok to proceed to PZC on January 23rd.  He said that would 
leave five weeks before going to City Council for a tree waiver and a modification to the EDA. 
 
Colleen Gilger explained the City Council logistics.  She said the EDA modification will take two 
readings.  Ms. Husak said the tree waiver request could potentially be on the same agenda.   
 
Mr. Langworthy asked the applicant if there were any further questions or concerns. 
 
Mr. Ghidotti asked for clarification on the time frame and what would be realistic for having 
plans ready for the PZC packets by 5:00 pm on Friday.  Mr. Phillabaum said that having the 
revised plans to him by Thursday morning would be acceptable. 
 
Mr. Langworthy counseled the applicant by stating the PZC would act on the conditions 
independently; normally ART would approve.  He said PZC must approve site plan issues and 
departures from the Zoning Code.  If they agree on all three, they may still just have one vote.  
He also thought the OU parking summary would carry some weight for explaining their parking 
needs.  He emphasized the need for providing clear reasons when addressing the Commission. 
 
Mr. Ghidotti asked if the Planning Report would have the same recommendation to the 
Commission on Friday.  Mr. Langworthy said this will be ART’s recommendation.  He said if 
revised plans reflect changes, staff can take out corresponding conditions.  He explained that 
this is not a large number of conditions and revised plans are useful.  Mr. Langworthy asked the 
applicant if he fully understood the conditions and if there were any last comments. 
 
He concluded that the Administrative Review Team recommends approval of the Development 
Plan request to the Planning and Zoning Commission with six conditions: 
 

1. That the parcels present in this portion of Subarea One be combined prior to issuance of 
occupancy permits to create a cohesive campus parcel, eliminate building side yard 
setback issues, and resolve potential future building and pavement  setback conflicts; 
 

2. That the parking lot design be revised to distribute landscape islands through the lot, as 
described in this report and subject to Planning approval, prior to submission to the 
Planning and Zoning Commission; 

  



Administrative Review Team Special Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, January 14, 2014 

Page 5 of 5 
 
 

3. That a bike path connection be provided from the bicycle parking spaces on the east 
side of the building to the existing multi-use path along Post Road, subject to Planning 
approval, prior to submission to the Planning and Zoning Commission;  

 
4. That the Tree Preservation Plan and Landscape Plan be revised consistent with the 

comments provided, subject to Planning approval, prior to issuance of site permits; 
 

5. That the applicant submit a lighting plan meeting all applicable Code requirements, 
subject to Planning approval, prior to issuance of site permits; and 
 

6. That the applicant ensure adequate site circulation and fire access to all buildings 
subject to approval by the Fire Marshall. 
 

Recommendation of approval to the Planning and Zoning Commission for the following as part 
of the Site Plan Review: 
 

1. 153.040(B)(7) – Open Space Plantings – Waiving requirement to provide 1 tree per 
1,000 square feet of pervious site area as being inconsistent with, and impractical 
toward, meeting the objective to create a campus of multiple buildings on a single 
parcel. 
 

2. 153.040(F)(2) – Parking Location – Allowing the parking for the proposed building to be 
located principally along the future Industrial Parkway street frontage based on the 
objective of preserving the interior of the site for the creation of a campus green and 
open spaces between the buildings.  
 

3. 153.040(G) – Parking Adjustment – Providing 403 parking spaces, which exceeds the 
parking requirement of approximately 227 parking spaces based on the documented 
needs of the future uses provided by the applicant. 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE 

Mr. Langworthy asked the ART if there were any additional questions or concerns or any further 
items for discussion. [There were none.]  He told the applicant that we look forward to seeing 
revised plans.  He adjourned the meeting at 2:45 pm. 
 


